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CORPORATE SERVICES COMMISSION 
Clerk's Department 

December 4, 1998 

6 Wismer Place 
Markham, Ontario 
L6E 1A7 

• 

Dear  

' 

Re: By-law 234-98 - To Designate a Certain Property 
as being of Historic and/or Architectural Value 
or Interest (The Gapper Duncan House -
6 Wismer Place) File: 16.11.3 

This will advise that Council, at its meeting held November 24, 1998 
passed By-law 234-98 to designate ''The Gapper Duncan House'', 6 
Wismer Place, as being of historic and/or: architectural value or interest 

• 

A copy of the by-law, with the pertinent registration data, is attached for 
your information. 

· cerely, 

ice Harrison 
anager, Secretariat Services 

JH/jik 
• 

Encl . 

c: . · h.e Oo:tario .. H.erifage.:F.ound~tjon 
Mr. Regan Hutcheson, Senior Planner, Heritage and Conservation 

Town of Markham Anthony Roman Centre 101 Town Centre Boulevard, Markham, Ontario L3R 9W3 
(905) 477-7000 • Fax (905) 479-7nt • Website: www.city.markham.on.ca 
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A by-law to designate a certain p,:operty as being of 
Historic and/or Architectural Value or Interest 
The Gapper-Duncan House, 6 Wismer Place 

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, tl1e council of a municipality 
is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all the buildings and 
structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or interest; 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town ofMarkha1n has caused to 
be served on the owners of the lands and premises at: 

 
6 Wismer Place 
Markha1n, Ontario 
L6E 1A7 

and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate The Gapper 
Duncan House located at 6 Wismer Place, and has caused such notice of intention to be 
publisl1ed 011ce in a newspaper having a general circulation in tl1e municipality; 

AND WHEREAS tl1e reasons for designation are set out in Schedule ''B'' attached hereto · 
and forming part of this by-law; 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF 
MA AM HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. THAT the following real property, more particularly described in Schedule ''A'' 
attached hereto and forming part of this by-law is hereby designated as being of 
historic and/or architectural value or interest: 

The Gapper Duncan House 
6 Wismer Place 

· Town ofMarkha1n 
The Regional Municipality of York 

2. THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be 
registered against the property described in Schedule ''A'' attached hereto in the 
property Land Registry Office . 

~----- ·-=- ------ ·---

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED TIDS 
24TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1998. 

ON COUSENS, MAYOR 
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In tl1e Town ofMarkharn in the Regional Municipality of York, property description as 
follows: 

• 

PCL 10-1 SEC 65M2761; 

LT 10 PL 65M2761; 

MA 
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STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION 

Tl1e Gapper-Duncan House is recommended for designation under Part IV of tl1e Ontario 
Heritage Act because of its historical and architectural significance. 

J-Iistorical Reasons 
• 

The Gapper-Duncan House located at 6 Wismer Place, Markham Heritage Estates was 
originally located on the west half of Lot 40, Concession l, Markham Township, fronting 
onto Yonge Street, immediately south of Sixteentl1 A venue. The l1ouse was relocated in the 
late 1950s to 231 Duncan Road, Markham Township, wl1ich later became part of the 
Town of Riclm1ond Hill. 

The house was built for Richard Gapper in 1828, who named the house ''Levellands''. 
Richard Gapper served as an officer in the British Army during the Napoleonic Wars. 
Following l1is military service, l1e decided to emigrate to Ca11ada to take advantage of the 
opportunities the New World had to offer. 

In 1825, Gapper a1·rived in Upper Canada with his brother Williarn Southby. Being a half 
pay officer, Richard Gapper had the financial resources to purchase a fann that had already 
been partially cleared, rather than applying for a grant of raw wilderness on the fringes of 
the settlement. 

The construction of the house was recorded in the journals of Richard Gapper's mar·ried 
sister, Mary S. O'Brien. The journals contain many interesting details about the life or 
Richard Gapper and his wife, Fanny, at Levellands. While awaiting the arrival of furniture 
for the new house, some of which was shipped from England, conditions were decidedly 
primitive for a family that had been raised in the country houses of England. 

''A pair of carpenter's trestles which supported two slabs 
formed their table, two chairs and a tea kettle completed the 
room ... 

,, 

On its original site of Yonge Street, the house was located close to a black ash swa1np, 
which provided some of the materials used for the heavy timber fra111ing. In reference to 

• 

the swa1np, Mary O'Brien jokingly dubbed the farm ''Froglands''. 

The completed house was an elegant Georgian-tradition dwelling with a scale and 
sophistication of detail appropriate to the social status of the Gapper family. The fonnality 
of the exterior was relieved by a co1nmodious tent-roofed verandah that gave the house a 
Regency flavour. 

Richard Gapper's Tory politics and social connections with the Family Compact placed 
him at odds with Williaxn Lyon Mackenzie and his refon11-oriented political ainbitions. 
Gapper's involvem as a director of the home District Agricultural Society was 

· · challengedbyM-cKe · ie;~ana·the ill-willoetWeenthe-two was furlher-aggravatedthrough- - -
Gapper's attempts undermine Mackenzie's efforts to be elected as a member of the 
Legislative Assembly. During the Rebellion of 183 7, Richard Gapper organized and 
outfitted a troop of cavalry at his own expense. 

In 1852, Richard Gapper and his wife ret1.1rned to their native England, and sold their 
property to William Duncan. 

In 1958, as a result of a tlrreat of demolition, the house was relocated to a new location at 
231 Duncan Road. 

In 1997, the house was again threatened with demolition and was relocated by 
to Markham.Heritage Estates where it is undergoing restoration to its 

original appearance. 



-------------~--------- -

- -· ... 
• 

~ ... 
, 

> • -
i"-..... -

' . 
• 

' 

-

• 
' 

• 

• 

-2-
• 

• 

• 

-

Architectural Reasons 

The Gapper.,Duncan House is one of the most significant examples of Regency influenced 
Georgian Arcl1itccture in tl1e former Markham Township. 

The house is two storeys in height with a 3 bay facade and a hipped roof. 

The windows on the house are reproductions of the original windows and are double hung 
with a 12/8 pane division on the second storey and a 12/12 pane division on the lower 
storey. 

On the rear elevation the windows have been converted to a 2/2 pane division, which the 
house exhibited in an historic photograph taken at the turn of the century. 

The front entrance is an outstanding exa1nple of Georgian Architecture with sidelights and 
pilasters, flanking a 6 panel door. The windows would have been originally flanked with 
louvered wood shutters, Y2 the width of the window and attached by hinges in a traditional 
manner. 

On the right side elevation there exists a reproduction of an early Georgian doorway which 
was docu1nented as a feature of the house. 

An outstanding feature of the house is the tent roofed veranda along 3 sides of the house. 
The veranda, which has been restored using architectural evidence and historic 
pl1otographs is supported by quatrefoil posts and arcl1ed brackets. 

' 

The house is clad in narrow feather-edged clapboard which is applied with rose-nails, 
flanked by substantial corner boards. A few years after the completion of the house, a 
stucco finish was applied to the exterior of the house. The stucco was rough cast on 3 sides 
of the house a11d on the front, below the veranda, there was a smooth finish, marked to 
simulate asl1lar blocks. Tl1e original clapboard siding l1as now been restored. 

• 

The hipped roof is clad in wood shingles. A prominent feature of the roof are the restored 
chimneys which were designed based on historic photographs. 

In the first quarter of this century a rectangular 2 storey, gable roofed addition was either 
moved from another location or built onto the right side of the house. 

The original orientation of the house was west facing. The house now faces east. 

At the time of the relocation of the house, the c.1920-SOs garage was also relocated to the 
property. This feature is to be clad in board and batten to blend in with the architectural 
period of the house. 

• 
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IDENTIFICATION 

Property: 

Original Property: 

Owners: 

Inventory No.: 

Date of Construction: 

Style of Architecture: 

Type of Structure: 

N111nber of Storeys: 

Exterior Wall Material: 
' 

Special Features: 
' 

The Gapper-Duncan House 
6 Wismer Place 
Lot10,Plan65M-: · J.11&! 
Markha in Heritage Estates 

Lot 14, Concession 1 

6 Wismer Place 
Markham, On 

G4-5q 

c.1828 

Georgian with Regency influence 

Residence 

2 

Horizontal, feather-edged clapboard 

Tent roofed veranda 
Georgian entranceway 
Classical proportions 
Comer-Boards 
Georgian glass door 
Georgian chimneys 
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THE GAPPER-DUNCAN HOUSE, 1990s 
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PHOTOGRAPHS OFTHE GAPPER-DUNCAN 
AT 6WISMER PLACE 
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